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CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

AGENDA DATE:
August 9, 2016
TO:
Mayor and Councilmembers
FROM:
Engineering Division, Public Works Department
SUBJECT:
Contract For Preliminary Design and Environmental Studies For Cabrillo Boulevard And Union Pacific Railroad Bridge
RECOMMENDATION:
 

That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services contract with Ty-Lin International in the amount of $689,207 for design services of the Cabrillo Boulevard at Union Pacific Railroad Underpass Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $68,920 for extra services of Ty-Lin International that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work.

DISCUSSION:

Background
The approved and constructed Highway 101 Operational Improvements Project (also known as the Milpas to Hot Springs Project) included a new tunnel adjacent to the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) Bridge to provide pedestrian and bicycle access between Coast Village Road and the beachway on Cabrillo Boulevard. The tunnel and multipurpose path components were included in that project for necessary consistency with policies addressing pedestrian and bicycle coastal access across Highway 101. Despite the Santa Barbara County Association of Governments’ (SBCAG) efforts to construct the tunnel, UPRR was ultimately unwilling to allow the tunnel in their right of way due to structural concerns associated with the existing bridge. UPRR expressed support for bridge replacement as an alternative.

On April 23, 2013, City Council authorized a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SBCAG for improvements along Cabrillo Boulevard under Highway 101 and the UPRR Bridge to safely connect bicycle and pedestrian paths at Los Patos Drive and Coast Village Road. At the same time, Council authorized the execution of a contract with HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR), for the conceptual design services required to fulfill the original MOU.
The City received an approval letter from UPRR on September 26, 2015, for the concept design completed by HDR. Subsequently, the City and SBCAG agreed that the original MOU has been fulfilled and that a new MOU was required to continue with the next phase of the Project.

On April 12, 2016, Council authorized a new MOU with SBCAG for Design and Environmental Approval of the Cabrillo Boulevard at Union Pacific Railroad Underpass Project (Project). The new MOU provides the contractual mechanism between SBCAG and the City to continue to make progress on the Project. SBCAG has agreed to fund up to $800,000 in environmental, preliminary engineering, and design services for the project. This will cover the anticipated cost of consultant work products, any UPRR review costs, and City staff costs up to 5 percent of the total.

Project Description
In review of the South Coast 101 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project, the City identified the access and circulation deficiencies associated with the existing UPRR Bridge at Cabrillo Boulevard. Subsequently, SBCAG created the Project parallel to the HOV project, and the City and SBCAG entered into the original MOU for preliminary design of the replacement of the UPRR Bridge at Cabrillo Boulevard.

The Project will construct Active Transportation (pedestrian and bicycle) Improvements on East Cabrillo Boulevard between the Highway 101 ramps and the intersection with Los Patos Drive, including replacing the UPRR Bridge.  Design of the project will be completed in two phases. Phase 1 of the design is Preliminary Engineering, requiring an investigation as to the most cost-effective alternatives for locating the Active Transportation Improvements, the location of the railroad track shoo-fly, and the replacement bridge type selection, culminating in a Project Report Equivalent and environmental approval for both the National Environmental Policy Act and the California Environmental Quality Act. Phase 2 of the design will require final plans, specifications, and cost estimates for the construction of the Project improvements.
The new MOU is for Phase 1 of the design.  SBCAG has secured funding to complete this phase of design. During this phase, the City will work with Ty-Lin International (TYLI) to refine the engineering aspects of the project, conduct environmental studies, and prepare an environmental document with the objective to obtain environmental clearance. Phase 2 will be completed under separate contract provided sufficient grant funds can be secured following the successful completion of Phase 1.
Design Phase Consultant Engineering Services
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with TYLI for $689,207 for design and $68,920 for potential extra services, for a total amount of $758,127. TYLI is experienced in this type of work and was selected following a Request for Qualifications, in accordance with Federal procurement requirements.
Funding
SBCAG has allocated $800,000 for this next phase of work. Approximately $2.5 million in state and federal grant funds are available for environmental and design work. SBCAG will reimburse the City for all participating project costs associated with this phase, up to $800,000. This includes up to five percent ($40,000) reimbursement for City staff efforts.
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs:

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST

	Conceptual Design (by HDR)
	$99,105

	Other Design Costs - City staff
	$10,000

	Subtotal
	$109,105


	Project Approval and Environmental Document (this phase)
	$758,127

	Other PA&ED Costs including City staff 
	$41,873

	 Subtotal (Phase 1)
	$800,000

	Estimated Final Design (by Contract)
	$712,500

	Other Final Design Costs including City staff
	$37,500

	 Subtotal (Phase 2)
	$750,000

	Subtotal (Design)
	$1,659,105

	Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance

	$19,100,000

	Estimated Construction Management/Inspection by Contract
	$1,500,000

	Estimated Other Construction Costs (design support, agency staff, testing, etc.)
	$400,000

	 Subtotal (Construction)
	$21,000,000


	TOTAL PROJECT COST
	$22,659,105


There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Streets Grant Fund to cover Phase 1 design costs.

PREPARED BY:
Brian D’Amour, P.E., City Engineer/tb
SUBMITTED BY:
Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director

APPROVED BY:
City Administrator’s Office
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